
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   7 October 2008 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 15 October 2008 

beginning at 
3:00 pm 

in 
Conference Room 2, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillors Airey, Craig and Millar 
 County Councillors Mrs Boulton, Broadhurst and Davidovitz 
 Mr Egleston, Mr Jackson & Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Ian Doutch, County Museums Service 
 Jo Lawler, County Museums Service 
 Martin Coulson, Area Co-ordinator, Eastleigh Borough Council 
 Councillor J Misselbrook, Bursledon Parish Council 
 
Staff Contact: Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 

8133; Email: julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Appointment of Chairman      
  
 (NOTE: The Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities.  For 

the year 2008-09 the Chairman will be appointed from the Borough Council 
members of the Committee.) 
  

  
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman      
  
 (NOTE: The Vice-Chairmanship alternates annually between the two authorities.  

For the year 2008-09 the Vice-Chairman will be appointed from the County Council 
members of the Committee.) 
  

  

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 2000/01 
Community Safety Preventing Crime and Disorder 
2002/03 
Fostering Business Growth 
2008/09 
Tackling Climate Change 



3. Apologies     
 
4. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  
  
 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 April 2008.  
  
5. Bursledon Windmill Report    (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
6. Revenue Budget Estimate 2009-10    (Pages 9 - 12) 
 
7. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 



1 

 
BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 9 April 2008  (3:00 pm – 4:22 pm) 

 
The meeting was held at the Civic Offices, Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Airey, Millar and 
Pepper 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Broadhurst and 
Davidovitz 
 

 Peter James - County Museums and Archives Service
 Jo Lawler - County Museums and Archives Service
 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Councillor Misselbrook - Bursledon Parish Council 
 Martin Coulson - Area Co-ordinator 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr Egleston and Mr Jackson, 
Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2008 were agreed as a 

correct record, subject to Item 3 (c) Any Other Business – Visit to the 
Windmill) being amended to read “The Head of Operations reported that the 
Chairman of the County Council had visited the Windmill a few weeks ago 
and had enjoyed her visit.” 
 
Matters Arising 
 
On Minute 1 (Minutes - Matters Arising)) the Head of Operations reported 
that the Curator, Dr Gavin Bowie, was to take early retirement with effect 
from 25 April 2008.  The Committee agreed to send a letter to Dr Bowie, 
expressing their gratitude for his hard work, enthusiasm and dedication to 
Bursledon Windmill over many years. 
 
On Item 3 (a) (Any Other Business – Update on events and progress at the 
Windmill) Councillor Millar reported that he had produced two quotes for the 
provision of fencing and posts at the entrance to the car park area, which 
had been circulated to the Committee.  The Committee thanked him for the 
quotes, which were being considered by the appropriate operational staff.  

 
2. BURSLEDON WINDMILL REPORT DECEMBER 2007 - MARCH 2008 
 
 The Visitor Services Manager (VSM) introduced a report detailing activities, 

education and events at the Windmill between December 2007 and March 

Agenda Item 4

1



2008.   
 
The Windmill was to take part in National Insect Week at the end of June, 
for which the Museum Service’s Biology Department was to run pond insect 
life activity sessions and also provide a pond interpretation board. 
 
The Windmill was also to participate in the Big Draw in October, with a day 
craft activity planned.  The Committee suggested that, as the Windmill site 
provided many opportunities for drawing, a competition could be organised, 
for both children and adults, with judging by a local artist and prizes 
awarded.  This event could also offer promotional opportunities.  The Visitor 
Services Manager agreed to investigate this suggestion. 
 
National Mills Week was to take place in May and the Windmill had been 
included in advertising for this event. 
 
During the Easter holidays, activities were being trialled on Tuesday and 
Wednesday afternoons.  Windmills and Whirligigs was aimed at 5 – 11 year 
olds, with booking required, at a cost of £2.50 per child taking part.  During 
the first week six families had attended, with two more booked for the 
following week. The sessions had been advertised quite widely, with online 
advertising giving the new Hantsdirect contact centre number.  This number 
was now to be used on all Hampshire County Council advertising and a 
discussion took place around the merits of the contact centre. 
 
The Museum Service Learning Access Interpretation team was also 
providing assistance in the planning of multi-tasked educational visits and 
family site discovery/activity sheets. 
 
Visitors to the Windmill had increased from 112 in December to 432 in 
March.  Approximately 65 people had visited on Easter Sunday and 80 on 
Monday.  51 primary children in educational groups had visited in January 
and 32 in March.  These were from schools within a ten mile radius.  The 
Committee was concerned that visitor numbers should be increased and 
suggested that a feature on the Windmill be included in “Hampshire Now”, 
the magazine of the County Council, and in Eastleigh’s “Borough News”.  
The VSM reported that she would be speaking about the Windmill on Radio 
Hampshire on Tuesday 15 April, between 10 and 11 am.  Liaison with 
contacts at Bursledon Brickworks and Manor Farm would also take place, 
with a view to combining visits to all three sites.  It was suggested that a 
questionnaire be given to visitors to the Windmill, asking for e-mail 
addresses, which could be added to a promotional mailing list.   
 
Flour milled at the Windmill was selling well at both Pickwell Farm Shop and 
Eastleigh Museum.  Contact had also been made with curators and VSMs of 
all museums in Hampshire.  On 14 March, thirteen 25 kilo bags of flour had 
been milled in a favourable wind.  A discussion took place around marketing 
the flour more widely, whilst also acknowledging that supply could not be 
guaranteed as milling could only take place when the wind was from a 
certain direction and when there were no visitors to the Windmill.  However, 

2



3 

the Committee suggested that the VSM liaise with other mills, such as Eling 
and Winchester City, and with Tesco, which was very close to the Windmill 
site, and report back at the next meeting regarding future marketing 
opportunities. 
 
As mentioned at the previous meeting, Mr Graham Lowe, a neighbour of the 
Windmill, continued to assist in smartening the approach to the site.  The 
VSM had also met the family of the late owner of the woodland by the 
Windmill, who were interested in and supportive of the achievements at the 
Windmill.   
 
A new sign was soon to be erected at the entrance to the site, which would 
include opening times, the website address and an A4 covered area for 
posters, in line with new signs for all Museum sites. 
 
With regard to the fabric of the Windmill, it was reported that no work was 
necessary at present, as a thorough review of the building had been 
undertaken during the closure the previous year. 
 
It was AGREED –  
 
1. That the report be noted; and 
 
2. That a report on the future marketing of flour be brought to the next 

meeting.  
 
3. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was agreed that the next meeting would be held on Wednesday 15 

October 2008 at 3pm at the Civic Offices. 
 
M3817 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Bursledon Windmill report April 2008 – September 2008 
 
 
1) Activities / education / events 
 
Bank Holiday Monday visitor figures  
  M F C Total   
5th May 23 24 17    64 
26th May   7  8    5    20 ( wet until 2.30 ) 
25th Aug        35 43 35  113 
 
 
The National Insect Week Pond Lab event on 29th June went well with 113 people 
visiting.  This activity event was run by the natural sciences section of the Museums 
Service and was an added extra included within the normal admission charge.  Their 
knowledge and the money made available for the event also provided the site with a 
permanent pond interpretation board, pictured below. 
 

 
We are also taking part in The Big Draw with a number of events in October.   The 
Willow Wands and Baskets Day on October 5th was an added attraction to a normal 
Sunday.  The second event under The Big Draw theme, The Big Draw comes to 
Bursledon Windmill takes place on the 28th and 29th October during the school half 

Agenda Item 5

5



term.  The site and windmill will be open free on both days, from 10-4, for drawing, 
with an option to enter a competition. 
 
The holiday activity sessions for children and families have been very successful. Of 
the 16 sessions run over the Easter and Summer holidays a total of 135 children and 
115 adults took part and brought in a total of  £238.75  (at £2.50 per child over the 
age of 4, some came a second time for half price).  The events were free for the 
accompanying adults.  Only one session received no visitors.    ITV Meridian sent a 
photographer to film one of these activity sessions and showed the footage the 
following evening on the local news section.  These were pre-booked activities.   
However a number of those who had booked did not come and others came who 
had not booked.  The contact centre passed on enquiries regarding these activities 
and the system worked successfully.   
 
Ruth Kerr of the Museums Service LAI team is continuing to assist us in planning 
multi-tasked educational visits and family site discovery/activity sheets.  A couple of 
teachers have expressed an interest in piloting/trialling some of these new sessions. 
 
 
2) Visitors 
 
  Men    Women    Children    Children in education  students   Total 
April 2008     122      142 118               0          4     386  
May 2008       96         109   92             25                      0     322  
June 2008    115       118   78         53      0     364 
July 2008       96           123             98               0        0     317  
Aug 2008     180           228           233               0   0     641 
Sept 2008  73        75   60  0   0     208 
 
 
3) Flour production & Sales 
 
From 1st April to 31st September we have milled approx 1,156 kg of grain and 
produced approximately 961 kg flour. 
 
802.5 kg of flour was sold between 1st April and 31st September.  A breakdown of 
percentage sales per venue is below: 
 
73.5% at Windmill 
17% at Pickwells Farm shop          
5% at Eastleigh Museum 
4.5% at Rockbourne Roman Villa  
 
We currently have 522.5kg of flour ( including the white flour purchased to  produce 
the blend ) remaining in stock at 31st September. 
 
The flour, both wholemeal and blend, is currently selling well at both Pickwell Farm 
Shop and Eastleigh Museum, and over the summer season at Rockbourne Roman 
Villa.   It is likely that when the Willis museum at Basingstoke reopens at the end of 
November that they will also act as another outlet for our flour sales. 

6



 
I have recently made contact with Andrew Davies, the new Park Manager at Manor 
Farm, Botley, and am in discussions with him as to them acting in a number of roles: 
as an outlet for the flour and also the start of day wastage ( as chicken feed ); as a 
user of our flour, and for combined events. 
 
A small local firm which is just starting up called Doughtastic is interested in using 
our flour and holding events with us. 
 
   
4) Site 
 
Two coffee machines have been trialled on site by staff and this is to be followed up. 
 
Since the last meeting we have also received new sign for the entrance to the site, a 
photo of which is over leaf.     
 
 

7



 
 
Jo Lawler  5.10.2008 

8



 1

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
15 OCTOBER  2008 
 
REVENUE BUDGET ESTIMATE  2009-10 
 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HAMPSHIRE COUNTY MUSEUMS AND 
ARCHIVES SERVICE 
 
Contact: Ian Doutch  01962 826708 
 
 
 
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and 

Eastleigh Borough Council  the net cost of running Bursledon Windmill is 
shared between the two partner authorities.  

 
1.2 This report outlines progress with the current year’s budget and also deals with 

the forward estimate for 2009-10. 
 
 
2. Revenue budget 2008/09 
 
2.1 After its meeting on 14 November 2008  the Committee agreed to recommend 

a cash limit for the current year of £68,600  (£34,300 per partner).  This took 
into account estimates for inflation of 2.0% for pay and 2.5% for other prices.  

 
 
2.2 At a subsequent meeting of the Local Area Committee for Bursledon, Hamble  

and Hound the JMC’s recommendation was not accepted and it was decided 
that Eastleigh  Borough Council’s contribution  for the year would be £30,686,  
a reduction of  £3,614 on the sum requested. Bursledon Parish Council later 
made up that shortfall. 

 
 
2.3 Monitoring of the budget at this stage of the year indicates that it will be 

possible to manage within the agreed cash limit. 
 
 
3. Revenue Budget 2009 - 10 
 
3.1 So that the two contributing partners can make provision in their 2009-10 

budget planning process it is necessary for the Joint Management Committee 
to agree to recommend a forward budget in principle now. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

9



 2

3.2  Following the agreed format, the revenue estimate now includes an element to 
pay for the use Bursledon Windmill makes of Central Support Services 
provided by the Museums Service’s HQ in Winchester. Specialist services and 
resources supplied centrally include marketing, design & exhibitions, 
conservation, subject specialists, education and interpretation, collections 
management, storage, and workshops.  Bursledon Windmill’s requirement 
from next year’s  estimated c. £1.13m Central Services’ budget is calculated, 
as last year, at 0.3% (£3,500)   

 
 

 
3.3 The table  below shows the breakdown of estimated costs next year. The  

estimate for 2009-10 is £67,000 which is a decrease of £1,600 on the 2008-09 
budget.    Each partner will be required to contribute £33,500.  This decrease is  
largely due to reduced staff costs, arising out of the staffing restructure and the 
retirement of the curator. It takes account of an anticipated 2.5% increase for 
inflation on salaries, and 2.5 % on other costs. The County Council believes it 
is an accurate assessment of the windmill’s needs for the coming year.   

 
3.4 The projected budget for 2009/10 represents an interim position. Further plans 

for restructuring the staffing at the Windmill are currently being looked at and 
it is hoped that these options will yield further savings whilst improving 
flexibility. 

 
3.4 This is a cash limit and the final budget will be managed within this 

figure.  No further inflation allocation will be made during the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 3

Bursledon Windmill:  Revenue Budget estimate for 2009-10 
 

 
 
 

 
2007-08  
Outturn 

2008-09 
Budget 

2008-09 Actual 
to 30/09/08 

2009-10 
Estimates 

 £ £ £ £ 
Employees     

     
Curator 26,300  24,200
Visitor Services 
Manager  22,300

 
23,500

Museums Assistants 18,200  18,700
Casual staff 1,000  1,000
     
Total Salaries 62,401 67,800 27,140 67,400
     
Premises 5,663 5,100 2,277 5,200
     
Transport 1,405 2,000 298 800
     
Supplies & Services 602 3,000 817 3,100
     
Central Museum  
Support Services  

 
3,700 3,400 

 
1,650 3,500

     
 
Total Expenditure 

 
73,771 81,300 

 
32,180 80,000

     

Income 

 
 
5,098 12,700  

 
 
1,115 13,000

     
Net Expenditure 68,673 68,600 31,065 67,000
Less:  Bursledon P.C. grant  3,614   
  64,986   
     
Contributions     
     
Hampshire  
County Council 

 
32,493 

 
33,500

     
Eastleigh  
Borough Council 

 
32,493 

 
33,500

     

11



 4

 
 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 That the budget required to maintain the current levels of service be noted. 

 

12


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Bursledon Windmill Report
	6 Revenue Budget Estimate 2009-10

